T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Corporate Services
and Partnerships
Policy Overview

Committee

Date: THURSDAY, 2 FEBRUARY
2017

Time: 7.30 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 4 -

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8

1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

Councillors on the Committee

Scott Seaman-Digby, Chairman of the
Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy
Overview Committee (Chairman)

Richard Mills, Sports Champion (Vice-
Chairman)

Tony Burles

Wayne Bridges, Chairman of the Social
Services, Housing & Public Health Policy
Overview Committee

Duncan Flynn
Narinder Garg
Raymond Graham

Henry Higgins, Chairman of Executive
Scrutiny Committee

Robin Sansarpuri

Published: Wednesday, 25 January 2017

Contact: Luke Taylor
Tel: 01895 250833693
Email: kahmed®hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=243&Year=0

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking V/

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at

the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a . umé\\
short walk away. Limited parking is available at Pavilions &, gypube and b

the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Ahipoing -} G S

how to book a parking space, please contact
Democratic Services. Please enter from the
Council’s main reception where you will be car gk
directed to the Committee Room. Crickecidi Roa

Muziaming

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is

available for use in the various meeting rooms.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their
way to the signed refuge locations.



About this Committee

This Policy Overview Committee (POC) will undertake reviews in the areas covered by the
Administration and Finance Directorates and can establish a working party (with another

POC if desired) to undertake reviews if, for example, a topic is cross-cutting.

This Policy Overview Committee will consider and comment on budget and service plan
proposals for the Administration and Finance Directorates.

The Cabinet Forward Plan is a standing item on the Committee’s agenda.

The Committee will not consider call-ins of Executive decisions or investigate individual
complaints about the Council’s services.

To perform the policy overview role outlined above in relation to the following matters:

wWh =

Democratic Services

Localism

Central Services, incl. Human Resources, ICT, Communications & Legal
Services

Capital programme, property, construction & facilities management
Financial Planning & Financial Services

Enforcement and anti-fraud activities

Procurement

Performance Improvement

Economic development & town centres and regeneration

Local commerce, employment, skills and job creation

Local Strategic Partnership and Sustainable Community Strategy;
Community engagement, partnerships and the voluntary sector
Equalities and Community Cohesion

Community Safety

Public Safety & Civil Protection

Energy use and carbon reduction

Health & Safety

Any functions not included within the remit of the other Policy Overview
Committees

Cross-cutting reviews that cover the remit of other Committees



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1 Apologies for absence
2 Declarations of Interest
3 Minutes of the previous meeting 1-4

4 Exclusion of Press and Public

5 HR and Recruitment Review: Final Report TO FOLLOW

6  Draft Budget Proposals 2017/18 - Comments from Policy Overview 5-14
Committees

7  Use of Data within the Council 15-28

8  Community Cohesion and Hate Crime 29 - 36

9  Modern Slavery 37 - 40

10 Forward Plan 41 - 52

11 Work Programme 2016/2017 53 - 56



Agenda ltem 3

Minutes @%@

CORPORATE SERVICES AND PARTNERSHIPS
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

NORWARS

THILL

5 January 2017 LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

INGDON

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Scott Seaman-Digby (Chairman)
Richard Mills (Vice-Chairman)

Tony Burles

Wayne Bridges

Duncan Flynn

Narinder Garg

Raymond Graham

Henry Higgins

Robin Sansarpuri

LBH Officers Present:

Andy Evans, Senior Service Manager Residents Services

Chris Mayo, Capital Accountant

Mike Talbot, Workforce and Organisational Development Manager
Luke Taylor, Democratic Services Officer

Also Present:
Clir Jazz Dhillon

26. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1) Action by
There were no apologies for absence.

27. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda Item 2) Action by
There were no declarations of interest.

28. | MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 NOVEMBER 2016 Action by
(Agenda Item 3)
The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2016 were agreed.

29. | EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC (Agenda Item 4) Action by
It was agreed that all items of business would be considered in public.

30. | HR RECRUITMENT PROCESS (Agenda Item 5) Action by

Following the witness session held on 29 November 2016, the
Council's Workforce and Organisational Development Manager

attended the meeting to continue the review into HR and Recruitment.

The Committee heard that the focus of the meeting would be on

Page 1




sustaining competitiveness, creating talent pools, and ensuring
selection of high-calibre candidates, followed by a number of
recommendations, which would help the Council to remain a
successful public sector employer.

Sustaining Competitiveness

The Workforce and Organisational Development Manager confirmed
that working on an employer brand was vital to help achieve this, but
the Council also had to compete with private sector employers, and to
do this there should be a focus on the "Total Reward" package, which
is not just salary, but also includes pensions and other benefits, such
as generous holiday leave.

It was also important for the Council to improve their jobs website, to
ensure it is 'magnetic' and keeps viewers' attention. The site does
require a full review to ensure it has high impact and engages those
who visit the site.

It is also important for managers to have succession plans in place.
This is an important part of strategic workforce planning and should be
captured to prevent good employees leaving, and also, where possible,
allow the Council to interview internal candidates before going external,
which has a higher financial and time cost.

The Committee also heard that the Council are now starting to see hits
on their pages of the 'Glassdoor’ online site from those who have left
the organisation. A member of the HR team will now manage the
account, and this will help analyse areas where the organisation could
improve recruitment or staff retention, helping to reduce this selection
failure rate, and save the Council time and money when recruiting.
Members agreed this was important as HR is changing, and
modernising the way the Council analyses recruitment was vital to
keep up with competitors.

Talent Pool

The Council "talent pools" would need to be established, and an alumni
network would help this, as well as an increased profile on social
media.

The new apprentice scheme would also be considered as a talent pool,
and the Committee agreed it would be helpful if the apprentices could
be encouraged to be involved in social media.

Members asked about encouraging local people to apply for positions,
and the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager informed
them that the Council were advertising locally in libraries and schools,
as well as targeting apprentices from local schools via careers'
management teams.

Ensuring Selection of High-Calibre Candidates

It was agreed that the interview process needed to be modernised to

Page 2




ensure selection of top candidates and prevent hiring unsuitable
candidates. To do this, it was important to make the interview process
interesting, and Councillors agreed it was important to look at different
ways to make more senior hires. One possible idea was to ask senior
role candidates do a "day on the job" as part of the interview,
something that Social Services' directors have previously been asked
to do.

Cultural fit and shared values between candidates and the Council
were also essential to good recruitment. If there is a difference in
culture, it is harder to retain staff, so this must be taken into account
when recruiting. The Committee questioned whether there was a
difference in culture with candidates who hadn't worked in the public
sector before, and heard that it was important to be open and honest at
interviews to attract these candidates.

It was also helpful to have a commercial mindset which may be more
recognisable with private sector candidates' thinking, but the Council
has different values from other local authorities that may help
recruitment when up against competitors in the public sector.

Members also suggested that staff retention and the view of current
staff members should be analysed. The Committee heard that currently
staff surveys were used to understand the views of staff, but more
could be done in this area. It was agreed that an item on staff retention
and the benefit package that staff receive be added to the work
programme for the future.

The recommendations in the report were agreed, and would be
incorporated into the final report, which will be brought to the next
meeting of the Committee.

— RESOLVED: That the report be noted and the final report be
considered at the next meeting of the Corporate Services
and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee.

31.

2017/18 BUDGET PROPOSALS REPORT FOR SERVICES WITHIN
THE REMIT OF CORPORATE SERVICES AND PARTNERSHIPS
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE (Agenda Item 6)

The Deputy Director of Corporate Finance and Head of Operational
Finance, and Finance Business Partner in Operational Finance were in
attendance and introduced the report to Members.

The Committee heard that the Council continues to operate within the
constraints of the Government's deficit reduction programme, and the
revenue budget proposals were developed to deliver a zero increase in
Council Tax for 2017/18.

The Deputy Director of Corporate Finance and Head of Operational
Finance confirmed that within the zero based budgeting exercises,
services were challenged to justify current levels of budgetary provision
on the basis of actual spend, and if this could not be done, the
difference would be taken as a saving.

Action by

Page 3




After questioning, Members were informed that the increase in both
council tax and business rates revenue principally came as a result of
an increase in the number of properties, and therefore residents,
paying council tax and an increase in local business respectively.

— RESOLVED: That the budget proposals report for services
within the remit of Corporate Services and Partnerships
Policy Overview Committee be noted.

32. | FORWARD PLAN (Agenda Item 7) Action by
RESOLVED: That the Forward Plan was noted.
33. | WORK PROGRAMME 2016/2017 (Agenda ltem 8) Action by

It was confirmed that the next meeting will take place on 2 February
2017, and at this meeting, the final report of the Major Review would be
considered.

Members also discussed the upward revaluation in business rates at
Heathrow Airport that has been confirmed for April, and noted that the
impact of this could be reported to the Committee at the meeting in
June or July.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 8.15 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Luke Taylor on 01895 250833. Circulation of these minutes

is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Pubilic.

Page 4




Agenda ltem 6

Draft Budget Proposals 2017/18 — Comments from Policy Overview
Committees

Contact Officer: Luke Taylor
Telephone: 01895 250 693
REASON FOR ITEM

To consider the full set of Policy Overview Committee comments on Cabinet's draft budget
proposals, their overall implications and to submit those comments to Cabinet.

OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE
That the Committee:

1. Consider the comments from the other Policy Overview Committees;

2. Seek clarification where necessary and;

3. Submit an agreed set of comments to forward to the Cabinet for it to consider

alongside this Policy Overview Committee’s budget proposals.

INFORMATION
As part of the Constitution (Budget and Policy Framework Procedure), Policy Overview
Committees have a role to review the Cabinet’'s draft budget proposals, which were set out at
Cabinet on 15 December 2016.

At each Policy Overview Committee in January, consideration was given to reports which provided
details of draft budget proposals relating to the remit of each Policy Overview Committee.

For Members information the full extract of the minute relating to the draft budget proposals for
each Policy Overview Committee is attached as Appendix A.

The Policy Overview Committee comments are set out as below:

Children, Younq People and Learning POC —-13 January 2016 (Children, Younqg People and
Learning Services)

"Members had received emails from residents concerned about the proposed savings for
Children's Centres and whether this would mean service reduction. The proposals were still under
consultation and all residents were encouraged to put forward their views.

It was moved and seconded that the Committee's support of the budget proposals be noted and
recommended to Cabinet. Having been put to a vote, this was agreed.

Mr Anthony Little wished it to be noted that he had abstained from voting.
The Labour Members wished the following statement to be recorded:
PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 5



"The Labour Group on the CYP&L POC does not support the budget for 2017/18 as presented at
the POC on 11 January 2017. We believe that the cuts to the budget, including those affecting
Children's Centres in Hillingdon, will mean a reduction in services, activities and programmes
which these Centres now offer. We further believe that the CYP&L POC has been presented with
no evidence to confirm that the cuts will not result in a diminution of the excellent support which
these Centres now offer to some of our youngest and most vulnerable residents as well as
evidence to confirm that the other 'savings' will not mean a dilution of some vital services"."

Residents' & Environmental Services POC — 24 January 2017 (Residents Services )

"The Labour Group acknowledged the savings which were having to take place across Residents
Services, but expressed some reservations on the impact of stream-lining management structures,
with subsequent loss of posts, and the impact this would have on the remaining staff within the
directorate

Overall, the Committee noted the budget proposals and the continuing budgetary pressures for the
Council, but expressed their appreciation at the work which had been carried out by officers, which
was not impacting on services to residents. In addition thanks was given to the work carried out by
officers and Cabinet Members in producing the budget".

Social Services, Housing & Public Health POC — 18 January 2017 (Adult Social Care,
Housing & Public Health)

"The Committee noted the budget proposals and the continuing budgetary pressures, particularly in
social care. Officers were thanked for their work in social care, the financial pressures, and for
providing first class services to residents.

The Committee welcomed the continuing success of the Right to Buy Scheme and the use of the
proceeds to support the construction or purchasing of 335 new properties.

The Committee also welcomed the merging of Adult and Children's Social Care Teams which
would improve efficiencies".

Corporate Services & Partnerships POC — 7 January 2016 (Finance and Administration)

"Members questioned how an increase in both council tax and business rates revenue was
received, as neither council tax nor business rates had been increased over the past year. The
Committee was informed that the increases came as a result of an increase in the number of
properties, and therefore residents, paying council tax and an increase in local business
respectively".

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Appendix A - Relevant minute extracts from the individual POC meetings.

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 6



APPENDIX A

Children, Young People and Learning POC — 11 January 2017 (Children, Young People and
Learning Services)

The Committee considered a report on the draft revenue budget and capital programme of the
Children, Young People and Learning Services for 2017/18, along with indicative projections for the
following four years. The proposals had been considered by Cabinet on 15 December 2015 and
were under consultation. The Cabinet would consider the budget proposals again on 16 February
2017 and the report would include comments from the Policy Overview Committees. Following that
meeting of Cabinet, full Council would meet on 23 February 2017 to agree the budgets and Council
Tax for 2017/18.

Members were reminded that the report set out the headline draft proposals, which were under
consultation. Where savings to existing services were proposed, alternative service delivery
models would be worked up and impact assessed before Council confirmed the budget.

It was reported that:

e The Council had entered into a multi-year settlement which would require the Council to find
savings of at least £15million per year. However, the Council still received a number of
external grants, which could be reduced and therefore could have an even further impact on
the budget. The consultation was on a tough financial settlement with significant challenges.

e The majority of the senior management team for Children's Services had been appointed.

e Recruitment of social workers was still a significant national challenge, although there had
been successful recruitment campaigns in South Africa with a plan to change focus to Canada.
The cost of agency staff continued to increase and direct recruitment would produce savings.

e The Council had improved its predictions for the number of children coming into the system.
Numbers has stabilised and reduced slightly.

e There were approximately 100 unaccompanied asylum seeking children in the Borough and
these numbers were increasing slightly. Hillingdon had taken children from Calais. London
was above the government's National Transfer Agreement cap and should not take any more
children, but in practice this was not happening.

e The Council was looking at recruiting in-house foster carers which cost around half the cost of
using agency carers.

e The pupil population had gone up by around 850. One primary school was seeking to convert
to an academy. The Borough had a healthy mix of school types with some more successful
than others.

e The Council would be implementing the government's increased early years' childcare of 30
hours per week and had been allocated £3 million to support this.

e The national funding formula was being introduced in April 2018. Some schools stood to lose
significant funding, although overall it appeared that Hillingdon would benefit.

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 7



e The Council had received further information that day on School Improvement Grants. The
Council was currently consulting schools on a number of proposals within a very short
timescale on the cessation of the Education Services Grant (ESG).

e From 1 September 2017, the ESG would cease. The Council currently received in excess of
£2.5 million. The finance model was complex and would have an impact on Council and school
funding.

e An area review of adult learning and further education colleges was taking place. The main
focus was on Further Education Colleges, where a number of colleges would be taken over
and supported by other colleges.

e A review of the Adult and Community Learning Fees identified that Hillingdon's charge rate
was significantly below the benchmark and that there was a proposal to increase them from
the start of the 2017/18 academic year to bring Hillingdon into line with other LAs.

e There were three areas of risk and contingency: £1.6 million for asylum seekers; £5.2 million
for Looked After Children; and £277K for agency staff.

e There was nothing specifically for Children and Social Care in the capital programme.
However, the Council remained committed to significant school expansion and £89 million
would be spent on this over the period of the capital programme, of which the Council would
receive £26 million in grant funding, with the remainder having to be funded by taxpayers.

e The free school agenda could be very positive for the Council, as the Council would not be
required to fund the school building costs.

The following points were made by Members during discussion:

e Members had received emails from residents concerned about the proposed savings for
Children's Centres and whether this would mean service reduction.

e The proposals were still under consultation and all residents were encouraged to put forward
their views.

It was moved and seconded that the Committee's support of the budget proposals be noted and
recommended to Cabinet. Having been put to a vote, this was agreed.

Mr Anthony Little wished it to be noted that he had abstained from voting.

The Labour Members wished the following statement to be recorded:

"The Labour Group on the CYP&L POC does not support the budget for 2017/18 as presented at
the POC on 11 January 2017. We believe that the cuts to the budget, including those affecting
Children's Centres in Hillingdon, will mean a reduction in services, activities and programmes
which these Centres now offer. We further believe that the CYP&L POC has been presented with
no evidence to confirm that the cuts will not result in a diminution of the excellent support which

these Centres now offer to some of our youngest and most vulnerable residents as well as
evidence to confirm that the other 'savings' will not mean a dilution of some vital services".

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 8



Residents’ & Environmental Services POC — 24 January 2017 (Residents Services)

The Operational Finance Manager introduced the report.

The Committee was informed that Budget proposals had been developed to support a ninth
successive Council Tax Freeze for all residents and an eleventh year for over 65s, whilst avoiding
implementation of the Social Care precept and maintaining frontline services.

This represented a significant achievement in light of continuing cuts to government funding for
local government, estimated at 17% in 2017/18 alone, alongside a growing population, driving an
ever increasing demand for locally provided services.

The Committee was informed that savings had been developed under five broad themes, which
focused on maintaining the existing service offer: These were Zero-Based Reviews; Preventing
Demand; Service Transformation; Effective Procurement; and Maximising Income.

The Committee was informed that the draft budget report did not include the impact of the recent
Local Government Provisional Settlement, which would be addressed in the budget report to
February Cabinet.

Corporate Position

Members were informed that the principal challenge in delivering a balanced budget for 2017/18
was the development of significant savings, with the savings requirement for 2016/17 originally
being estimated at £18,464k.

The budget proposals presented to Cabinet in December showed a £11,314k projected reduction
in Government funding which would be off-set by increased Council Tax and Business Rates
receipts of £4,638k which would reduce the net reduction in resources to £6,162k.

Reference was made to inflationary pressures and growth in demand, which continued to drive up
the savings requirement. There were savings proposals of £14,388k presented in this draft budget.

Savings

Savings proposals currently developed totalled £14,388k across the Council for 2017/18, which
included £1,669k of full year effects of prior year savings.

Members were informed that the total savings included in the draft budget for Residents
Services/Group totalled £4,094k and covered the following areas.

Residents

Transformation - £1,997k
PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 9



Zero Based Reviews - £1,615k
Effective procurement - £95k
Income generation - £387k

Fees & Charges

In relation to Fees and charges, the Council continued to benchmark fees & charges against
neighbouring boroughs with charges being set at a maximum of 90% of the relevant benchmark.
Details of proposed amendments included:

Highways / Crossovers & Skip Licensing
Golf Courses

Bereavement Services

Riding Establishments

Capital Programme

Members were provided with the key items contained within the draft capital programme:

Highways Structural Works - an additional £2,000k growth was included within this draft capital
programme to support up to £3,000k investment in local highways infrastructure during 2017/18,
with a further £1,000k per annum thereafter.

Battle of Britain Heritage Project - The budget reflected the latest total project cost, which including
prior years, would be £5,987k.

Bessingby Football and Boxing Clubhouse - latest cost estimates for the planned development had
resulted in project funding being increased by £420k to £1,370k which included prior years in this
draft capital programme.

Environmental & Cultural Projects - growth of £600k was included to replenish the £1,000k fund for
investment in a range of Environmental & Cultural projects within the Borough during 2017/18.

Ruislip Lido Railway Society Workshop - Replacement of the Society's workshop as the existing
one had deteriorated. A new building would also be able to house a greater number of locomotives.
Works had been costed at around £360k.

Uniter Building - This facility was located on the former site of RAF Uxbridge adjacent to the Battle
of Britain Bunker and it was proposed to develop a stable and secure storage facility for the

Borough's various collections of historical artefacts. Refurbishment and the addition of services and
shelving storage had been estimated at £400k.

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 10



Harlington Road Depot Resurfacing - It was proposed to resurface the waste yard at Harlington
Road Depot at an estimated cost of £200k.

Reference was made to the summary of key financial issues and the statement that the opportunity
was being questioned the needs for services and examining alternative methods of service
delivery. Officers said that clarification on this would be sought and communicated to Members.

Having considered the budget proposals, the following comments were asked to be submitted to
Cabinet on the budget proposals:

The Labour Group acknowledged the savings which were having to take place across Residents
Services, but expressed some reservations on the impact of stream-lining management structures,
with subsequent loss of posts, and the impact this would have on the remaining staff within the
directorate

Overall, the Committee noted the budget proposals and the continuing budgetary pressures for the
Council, but expressed their appreciation at the work which had been carried out by officers, which
was not impacting on services to residents. In addition thanks was given to the work carried out by
officers and Cabinet Members in producing the budget.

Social Services, Housing and Public Health POC — 18 January 2017 (Adult Social Care,
Housing & Public Health)

The Operational Finance Manager introduced the report.

The Committee was informed that the budget proposals had been developed to support a ninth
successive Council Tax Freeze for all residents and an eleventh year for over 65s, whilst avoiding
implementation of the Social Care precept and maintaining frontline services.

This represented a significant achievement in light of continuing cuts to government funding for
local government, estimated at 17% in 2017/18 alone, alongside a growing population driving an
ever increasing demand for locally provided services.

The Committee was informed that savings had been developed under five broad themes, which
focused on maintaining the existing service offer. Zero-Based Reviews; Preventing Demand;
Service Transformation; Effective Procurement; and Maximising Income.

Members were asked to note that the draft budget report did not include the impact of the recent
Local Government Provisional Settlement, which would be addressed in the budget report to
February Cabinet.

Corporate Position

Members were informed that the final funding settlement for 2017/18 would not be available until
February and so the budget had therefore been drafted on the latest estimated position.
PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 11



The Committee was informed that the principal challenge in delivering a balanced budget for
2017/18 was the development of significant savings, with the savings requirement for 2016/17
originally being estimated at £18,464k. This had since been revised upwards to £19,388k, primarily
as a result of increased inflationary pressure on the cost of Social Care placements. Taking
account of the planned drawdown of £5,000k from General Balances, this left a net savings
requirement of £14,388k.

The budget proposals presented to Cabinet in December 2016 showed a £11,314k projected
reduction in Government funding being off-set by increased Council Tax and Business Rates
receipts of £4,638k to reduce the net reduction in resources to £6,162k.

Inflationary pressures and growth in demand continued to drive up the savings requirement, with
savings proposals of £14,388k presented in this draft budget.

Savings

The Committee was provided with details of the savings proposals across the Council for 2017/18,
which totaled £14,388k. This included £1,669k of full year effects of prior year savings. The total
savings included in the draft budget for Adult Social Care, Public Health and Housing
Services/Group totaled £3,837k and were made up of the following:

Adult Social Care

Transformation - £1,627k

Zero Based Reviews - £1,106k
Preventing demand - £407k
Effective procurement - £305k
Income generation - £210k

Housing

Member were informed that savings which fell under the remit of this Committee, which would be
delivered within Residents Services, totaled £182k. This figure comprised of £131k for reviews of
Housing/Homelessness functions and £51k from Zero Based reviews.

Capital Programme

The Committee was informed that the draft capital programme would need to be revised once the
final impact of the settlement was known, as this may impact on the affordability of the programme.

Members were provided with a summary of the draft capital programme which fell within the
Committee's remit:

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 12



e The development of a new Dementia Centre.

e The development of a housing project at 1 & 2 Merrimans.

e The Belmore Allotments Housing Development - This was a housing development in Hayes
under a range of tenures including a proposed 30 units for Discount Market Sale, to be
financed through the General fund.

e The development of a programme for the Disabled Facilities Grant.

e The development of a programme for the Private Sector Renewal Grant / Landlord Property
Renovation Grant.

Reference was made to the proposed savings in Social Care staffing which would result in
efficiency savings. The Corporate Director of Adults, Children & Young Peoples Services explained
that the proposed savings would not impact on front line services but would delete some of the
vertical management posts.

The Committee was informed that inflationary pressures were causing an impact on social care
costs and the Council was looking at different models of delivery. Recruitment and retention of
social workers had improved as the Council was competitive in terms of salaries.

Having considered the budget proposals, the following comments were asked to be submitted to
Cabinet on the budget proposals:

The Committee noted the budget proposals and the continuing budgetary pressures, particularly in
social care. Officers were thanked for their work in social care, the financial pressures, and for
providing first class services to residents.

The Committee welcomed the continuing success of the Right to Buy Scheme and the use of the
proceeds to support the construction or purchasing of 335 new properties.

The Committee also welcomed the merging of Adult and Children's Social Care Teams which
would improve efficiencies.

Corporate Services & Partnerships POC — 5 January 2017 (Finance and Administration)

The Deputy Director of Corporate Finance and Head of Operational Finance, and Finance
Business Partner in Operational Finance were in attendance and introduced the report to
Members.

The Committee heard that the Council continues to operate within the constraints of the
Government's deficit reduction programme, and the revenue budget proposals were developed to
deliver a zero increase in Council Tax for 2017/18.

The Deputy Director of Corporate Finance and Head of Operational Finance confirmed that within
the zero based budgeting exercises, services were challenged to justify current levels of budgetary

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 13



provision on the basis of actual spend, and if this could not be done, the difference would be taken
as a saving.

Members questioned how an increase in both council tax and business rates revenue was
received, as neither council tax nor business rates had been increased over the past year. The
Committee was informed that the increases came as a result of an increase in the number of

properties, and therefore residents, paying council tax and an increase in local business
respectively.

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 14



Agenda ltem 7

Use of Data in the Council

Contact Officer. Dan Kennedy / Naveed Mohammed
Telephone: 01895 250 495 / 277 263

REASON FOR ITEM

Following a request from the Chairman, this paper presents an update on how data is
gathered and used in the Council to support the delivery of corporate priorities.

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

It is recommended that the Committee:

1. Note the update.
2. Question officers about the update.

INFORMATION
Background

The Council delivers over 700 services to the 100,214 households that comprise the
London Borough of Hillingdon. As part of this, the Council routinely gathers a wide
spectrum of data it needs to ensure services are being delivered in the most effective and
efficient way. In doing so, like many organisations, the Council has to pay due regard to
prevailing legislative requirements that govern the collection, storage and use of especially
personal, sensitive data. Furthermore, given the voluminous nature of the data that is
gathered - the Council has, at its disposable a variety of mechanisms to 'make sense of
the data' from the use of basic spreadsheets through to the use of more bespoke
databases and data mining software.

This paper will provide an overview of the arrangements in place, including use of case
study examples demonstrating how data has been used, and whether to shape service
delivery or enable the council to discharge its responsibilities.

It is important to note at the outset that, given the depth and breadth of data that is
compiled and used by the Council, this paper is not intended to provide an exhaustive list
of how data is used. Rather it will provide a general overview and an attempt to answer the
following questions

1. What are the roles and responsibilities for the gathering and management of data
across the Council?

What data does the Council hold/gather?
What arrangements are in place to store data and ensure its security?
How is data interrogated?

How is data used to help Hillingdon Council discharge its responsibilities and shape
service provision?

6. Future arrangements?

ok

Corporate Services and Partnerships POC — 2 February 2017

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 15



Allocation of roles and responsibilities

Roles and responsibilities for the gathering and management of data are dispersed across
the authority. In broad terms, the Council operates a corporate business performance
function which has responsibility for the interrogation and analysis of data. Ownership of
the data, including its compilation and data quality, rests with service areas.

What data does the Council hold/gather?

As mentioned previously, the Council provides over 700 services to local residents. The
provision of these services relies on the effective and efficient gathering of service data,
whether this relates to demographics and understanding the make-up of clients, how
efficiently functions are being delivered and measuring outcomes achieved (i.e. what
difference the services provided are making for Hillingdon residents).

Whilst the data that is gathered is likely to fall into these three categories, the specifics of
what is collected will differ depending on the service area.

Table 1

Directorate

Examples of Functions

Examples of data gathered

Administration

Legal, Policy and
Partnerships, Democratic
Services

HR data, Office of National
Statistics data, Greater
London Authority data store
including census, labour
market trends.

Finance

Business Assurance,
Revenues and Benefits,
corporate finance

Council tax collection,
business rates, benefits
information, debtors.

Resident Services

Public Health, Education,
Planning, HR, Housing,
Sport and Culture,
Community Safety,
Libraries, Waste and Refuse

Health profile, school places,
Strategic Needs
Assessment, crime types,
school attainment, library
footfall, books issued.

Adults, Children and Young
People's Services

Safeguarding, Early
Intervention, Children and
Adult's social care, disability
services

Service demand, business
processes, Special
Educational Needs
numbers, children's centres,
employment and training
figures for young people,
Youth Offending, caseloads,
length of time of cases.

Whilst by no means an exhaustive list, the range of data set out in Table 1 provides a good
demonstration of the breadth of data that is gathered across directorates. Much of this will
be gathered directly by services, either from clients or from in-house systems. There are,
however, particular data streams that rely on contributions from partner agencies or
external systems. For instance:

Corporate Services and Partnerships POC — 2 February 2017

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 16



e Community Safety - data on crime types and trends, including benchmarking data,
is obtained from the Metropolitan Police, as well as accessing third-party data sites
such as IQuanta.

e Public Health - data on local health profiles are available from Public Health
England. Data on prevalence rates for specific conditions are available from
Department of Health or from local Clinical Commissioning Group partners.

e Young People Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETs) - the Council
does not collect data directly on local NEET numbers. Like other West London
Councils, a commissioned provider gathers and supplies this data, including
analysis.

e Office of National Statistics data - Much of the data on Census statistics is housed
on Office of National Statistics websites including 'Neighbourhood Statistics'. This
includes all the figures on socio-economic profiles, population trends, sub-national
projections etc.

e Subject to the needs of the service and/or project, the Council may, from time to
time, utilise other data sources for the purposes of triangulation and adding greater
depth to the intelligence being gathered.

¢ Finally, wherever appropriate and needed, the Council will often access and share
more sensitive data to prevent and identify instances of fraud. This is particularly
the case in revenues and benefits and housing.

What arrangements are in place to store data and ensure its security?

Storing Data

Outside of the more routine collection of national statistics via Excel (all stored on the LBH
network), specific service-related data sets are stored on databases relevant to those
areas.

Ensuring data security

Given the stringent statutory requirements in this area, information governance is an
important element of the Council's work. The Council has clear duties to protect the
information held about members of the public and/or its employees (as well as confidential
information pertaining to legally or commercially sensitive data). Breaches of the Data
Protection Act through loss or mishandling of personal data are criminal offences that can
result in large fines (up to £500,000). Given this, the Council has an overarching
Information Governance Policy (2015) that regulates how LBH proprietary and client,
partner or supplier information, when created, stored, transmitted or communicated is
protected from unauthorised access, use, modification or destruction. At the heart of the
policy are seven key principles that require adherence. This includes:

- Confidentiality - Appropriate measures must be taken to ensure LBH proprietary,
private or client information is accessible only to those authorised to have access.

- Integrity - The accuracy and completeness of LBH information must be maintained
and all changes or modifications affecting that information must be authorised,
controlled and validated.

- Availability - Information must be available to authorised individuals when required.
In the event of a disaster or malicious attack, the Council's information and the
systems critical to the ongoing activities of the Council must be recoverable.

Corporate Services and Partnerships POC — 2 February 2017

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 17



- Authentication - All persons and systems seeking access to information, or to LBH
networked computer resources must establish their identity to the satisfaction of the
Council.

- Access Control - The privilege to view or modify information, computer programs
or the systems on which the information resides, must be restricted to only those
whose job functions absolutely require it.

- Auditing - Use access and activity on each of the council's computers, firewalls and
networks must be recorded and maintained in compliance with all security,
retention, legislation and regulatory requirements.

In addition to these policy principles, the Council provides further explicit direction and
training to employees on the storage, handling and use of data including the need to;

- Keep information safe and secure including the use of robust passwords, being
security aware when entering or leaving the building and only using authorised
equipment;

- Checking who information is being shared with;

- Using email carefully and responsibly including use of secure email when receiving
or transmitting sensitive data, and using blind copy where necessary;

- Not storing personal data on local hard drives, laptops or mobile devices;

- Keeping data secure when working away from the office; and,

- Taking extra care when taking information outside the office.

The Council's Information Security Officer has responsibility for the maintenance of the
security policies which are owned by the Hillingdon Information Assurance Group (HIAG).
All managers are responsible for implementing the security policies within their respective
areas.

A copy of the Council's Information Security statement is provided in Appendix A.
How in Data interrogated?

The Council has a wide-variety of tools at its disposal for interrogating data. Wherever
possible standard reporting tools that can connect to the service specific IT systems are
used. In addition, the Council has access to a number of subscribed services that provide
interrogated data. This includes access to Fisher Family Trust - a bespoke service
providing analytical support for education data and Iquanta which performs a similar
function for community safety data. Although part of a wider SLA (and as such not strictly a
subscription service) the Council also utilises support from contracted providers such as
West London Partnership Unit (Connexxions) that provide an analytical service for NEET
data.

Whilst each of the above examples have related to service-specific tasks, there have more
recently been occasions where the Council has needed to analyse data across multiple
services. A good example here is the Troubled Families programme. As part of the latter,
the Council has needed to identify family households that have been flagged under various
categories including persistent school absence/truancy, anti-social behaviour, long-term
unemployed etc. Adopting a single-service approach would not be useful in this context
and so the Council utilised a software solution that is able to look across multiple

Corporate Services and Partnerships POC — 2 February 2017

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 18



databases and 'flag' names that (re)appear. To date, this approach has been critical in
enabling the Council to identify over 800 eligible families.

How is data used to help Hillingdon Council discharge its responsibilities and shape
service provision?

Whilst like many councils, Hillingdon is required to gather data for the purposes of
statutory returns (including in Adult Social care, Children's Services and Housing). The
primary purpose of the vast majority of data collected is to ensure the Council is
appropriately discharging its responsibilities and helping aid future service development.

In respect of the former, data collected in social care, planning etc, helps build a picture of
how efficiently the Council is meeting targets, for instance, in the processing of planning
applications or discharging statutory social care requirements.

In addition to the above 'process measures', the Council regularly uses data to help shape
service delivery, whether this is part of ongoing work or one-off projects. An example of
this includes the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment which is the overarching data store
which helps shape and inform future commissioning plans.

Case studies have been provided as appendices which provide further detail on this.
Future arrangements?

The Council is committed to continuing to use data to intelligently drive forward service
improvement. As part of the BID programme, the interrogation of data forms a key element
of any service review.

Whilst this new approach will continue across the range of scheduled BID reviews, the
Council is equally committed to using data to improve frontline services to residents in day-
to-day service delivery improving practice in its more traditional operations. A key priority
here is enabling staff, including senior managers, get access to 'live data', the alignment of
service and financial data and finally more sophisticated supply/demand modelling to help
anticipate and plan for future service needs.

Corporate Services and Partnerships POC — 2 February 2017

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



X Appendix A

HILLINGDON

LONDON

Information Security Statement

The objective of this statement is to provide executive direction for the protection of information owned by
the London Borough of Hillingdon and our citizens, partners or suppliers in whatever form it may be held or
communicated, whether verbal, on paper or electronic. Information is one of our most valuable assets. Of
equal value is the trust of our partners and clients that we will protect the information that they have shared
with us.

LBH proprietary and client, partner or supplier information, when created, stored, transmitted or
communicated, must be protected from unauthorised access, use, modification or destruction.

Consequently, all access to, and use of this information and data, requires adherence to the following
policy principles:

e Confidentiality - Appropriate measures must be taken to ensure that LBH proprietary, private, or'
client information is accessible only to those authorised to have access.

e Integrity - The accuracy and completeness of LBH information must be maintained and all changes
or modifications affecting that information must be authorised, controlled, and validated.

e Availability — Information must be available to authorised individuals when required. In the event of
a disaster or malicious attack, the Council’s information and the systems critical to the ongoing
activities of the Council must be recoverable.

e Authentication - All persons and systems seeking access to information, or to our networked
computer resources must first establish their identity to the satisfaction of the Council.

e Access Control - The privilege to view, or modify information, computer programs, or the systems
on which the information resides, must be restricted to only those whose job functions absolutely
require it.

e Auditing - User access and activity on each of the Council’s computers, firewalls and networks
must be recorded and maintained in compliance with all security, retention, legislation and
regulatory requirements.

Security policies are in place to support these objectives, together with detailed procedures.
The Information Security Officer has responsibility for maintenance of the Security Policies, which will be
reviewed annually by the Hillingdon Information Assurance Group (HIAG).

It is the responsibility of each member of staff to adhere to LBH Security Policies.

The Information Security Officer has responsibility for maintenance of the Security Policies, which
will be reviewed annually by the Hillingdon Information Assurance Group (HIAG).

All managers are responsible for implementing the Security Policies within their areas, and for
adherence thereof by their staff.

It is the responsibility of each member of staff to adhere to LBH Security Policies.

- Chief Executive Date
(Ejngas-lgy % & October 2015
Owned by — Hillingdon Information Assurance Group Version 3.0

London Borough of Hillingdon Unf_paségi(‘thd



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



APPENDIX B
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

Background and Context

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) reports on the health and wellbeing needs of the people
of Hillingdon. It brings together detailed information on local health and wellbeing needs and looks ahead
at emerging challenges and projected future needs of local communities. The JSNA is an on-going,
iterative process with contributions from a range of partners within the Health and Wellbeing Board and
without. This includes Public Health, Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), HealthWatch, the
Voluntary and Community Sector and other partners. Responsibility for developing the JSNA and its
maintenance rests with the Business Performance team at LBH.

Aim of the Project

The JSNA has several aims including;

e To provide a comprehensive picture of the health and wellbeing needs of Hillingdon (now and in the
future).

e To inform decisions about how we design, commission and deliver services, and also about how the
urban environment is planned and managed.

e To improve and protect health and wellbeing outcomes across the city while reducing health
inequalities.

e To provide stakeholders and the wider community with information on the changing health and
wellbeing needs of Hillingdon, at a local level, to support better service delivery.

e As the evidence base for the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, identifying important health and
wellbeing issues for Hillingdon, and supporting the development of action plans for the priorities
named in the strategy.

What data was used?

Data drawn from a wide range of internal and external sources. Internal sources include data from
directorates relating to clients (anonymised). External sources include (not exhaustive)

Office of National | Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning | GPs/Pharmacies
Statistics Group
NOMIS - Labour Market | Health and Social Care Information | Public Health England
Stats Centre

Greater London Authority | Metropolitan Police

How was data interrogated?

Data was primarily interrogated via MS Excel and involved downloading CSV files and manual
interrogation. Data on the Public Health Outcomes Framework was analysed via the tools available on
the Public Health England website.

What was the result?

The JSNA acts as a key reference document that should be referred to as part of any commissioning
process. To date services commissioned in Public Health including Drug and Alcohol and Sexual Health
have both drawn evidence bases from the JSNA. The latter was also as part of the ongoing re-tender of
the 0-19 programme in Children's Services. Finally the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment also draws
on the JSNA - the former takes place every two years and plays an important role in ensuring the
adequate provision of pharmacies across the borough.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



APPENDIX C
School Places Planning

1. Aim and objective of the project

The Council has a statutory responsibility to provide adequate provision of school places for
pupils who live in the borough.

‘sections 13, 13A and 14 of the Education Act 1996 which require local authorities to: ensure
that efficient primary, secondary and further education is available to meet the needs of their
population; ensure that their education functions are exercised with a view to promoting high
standards ensuring fair access to opportunity for education and learning, and promote the
fulfilment of learning potential; and secure that sufficient schools for providing primary and
secondary education are available for their area.’

Annex A - Clarification of local authority statutory duties relating to services relevant to the Education Services Grant

In order to comply efficiently and effectively with the statutory responsibility as detailed above
officers are required to produce a set of School Place Planning (SPP) projections annually for
the Department for Education. The annual School Capacity return (SCAP), and is used to
determine school place capacity and to allocate funding for expanding/new schools where
necessary.

2. What data we used - where it came from (internal or partners etc)

Data sources include:

e Strategic Housing Availability Assessment (SHLAA) - Greater London Authority 2015 round
trend population projections.

Housing development data — from Planning.

Spring School Census — collected by the Council from all schools and verified by the DfE.
Office of National Statistics birth rate data.

GP Registration data from Greater London Authority.

3. Methodology employed for analysis, how it was interrogated - did we use any tools

Population data, birth and GP data, housing developments data and school expansions
information is analysed. School expansions in neighbouring boroughs are also considered as
this may impact on the provision of school places for residents of the Hillingdon. The priority is
to complete the school places projection to ensure sufficient places can be provided to meet
current and future demand.

The main tool used for the data analysis is Excel. An Excel spreadsheet is sent to the GLA
detailing all known housing developments across the borough for the next 20 years. The GLA
then combine this with the population projection data and the Spring School Census data where
they also take the post code of the pupil's home and school to determine migration and
movement across the borough. This data is then returned to the Council, checked and
interrogated against previous SPP projections to ensure that all local issues have been taken
into account. We will look at areas of pressure due the density of the population as well as
pressure due to parental choice.

Geographical information systems are used to map areas around school to determine any

pressures that may occur. This will also give an understanding of pupil mobility and parental
preference.

Page 25



4. How was it used to drive project/influence service change etc

The analysis is used to ensure that the Council’s statutory responsibility if fulfilled. Where there
are pressures, possible solutions will be presented to Members for consideration which may
include temporary or permanent expansions of existing school or a feasibility study to determine
if a new school will be required to meet future capacity needs within the borough.

Page 26



APPENDIX D
Troubled Families Project

1. Aim and objective of the project

The Troubled Families (TF) programme is a government initiative which is now into its second
phase. It is focussed on those families with complex needs covering issues such as poor
school attendance, worklessness and youth offending coupled with locally determined issues
such as domestic violence. Families are benefitting from intervention and support to ‘turn-
around’ and improve their situation. This includes support to gain employment. The TF
Programme operates a payment by results funding model with £1,000 for each family identified
and £800 for each family ‘turned around’.

To be eligible for the TF programme, each family must have at least two of the following six
problems:

1. Parents or children involved in crime or anti-social behaviour.

2. Children who have not been attending school regularly.

3. Children who need help: children of all ages, who need help, are identified as in need or are
subject to a Child Protection Plan.

4. Adults out of work or at risk of financial exclusion or young people at risk of worklessness.

5. Families affected by domestic violence and abuse.

6. Parents or children with a range of health problems.

2. What data we used

Data is matched and linked into council systems as a means of identifying names that are
flagged across multiple data sets.

The following data sets are analysed:

o Benefits Data — internal data (criteria 4)

o Protocol LCS - internal data from the Early Intervention Team in Children's Social
Services.

Employment, Education and Training data from West London Partnership Unit
(criteria 2, 4)

MARAC - Police data (criteria 1)

Children’s Centre data — internal data (criteria 3, 4, 5)

Youth Offending Service — internal data (criteria 1)

School Data from gathered via the bi-annual census' (criteria 2)

O

O O O O

e Manual checking
o Children in Need (CIN) and Child Protection Plan (CPP) data - internal data (criteria
2&3)
o Housing/homelessness data — internal data (criteria 3, 4, 5)

3. Methodology employed for analysis

The benefits information is used as a database for the Troubled Families programme and all
other data is matched to this. This data provides the broadest catchment of families fitting the
Troubled Families criteria as it holds details of out of work benefits, how long the client has been
in receipt of them as well as details of all family members as a unit. It also gives the latest
home address, this is crucial evidence that these families reside in Hillingdon. This is then

Page 27



cross matched with all other data sources (from the list above) with the aim of identifying all
families where 2 or more TF criteria are apparent.

Further checks are carried out cross matching the housing/homelessness data and CIN and
CPP data. This manual checking is completed using Excel.

4. How was it used to drive project/influence service change etc

The data is used to identify families who have problems that can be linked to at least 2 of the 6
criteria as set out in point 1. This programme is intended to focus on clients where a high
volume, high costs of services are provided to help and assist with their daily lives. The
intended outcome is to improve the services that work with them and to ensure more efficient
and effective use of public money for the long-term.

Families that are classifies as turned around would, by definition, be more independent and self-
sufficient and less dependent on the support of social care and the benefits system.

Using a data-matching approach also allows the Council to target and tailor subsequent
interventions to address the challenges that each family faces.

Page 28



Agenda Iltem 8
HATE CRIME AND COMMUNITY COHESION

Contact Officer: Fiona Gibbs
Telephone: 01895 277 035

REASON FOR ITEM

The Chairman requested an update on Hate Crime and Community Cohesion. Officers have
been asked to report on what has been done in the last twelve months by the council to fight
against hate crime, what the Council currently doing, and what the Council has by way of future
plans.

OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE

The Committee is asked to note the content of this report.
INFORMATION

Background

What is Hate crime?

A Hate Incident is generally seen as any incident which the victim, or anyone else, thinks is
based on someone's prejudice towards them due to their race, religion, sexual orientation,
disability or because they are transgender. Not all hate incidents will amount to criminal
offences, but those that do become hate crimes.

The Association of Chief Police Officers and the CPS have agreed a common definition of hate
crime: "Any criminal offence which is perceived by the victim or any other person, to be
motivated by hostility or prejudice based on a person's race or perceived race; religion or
perceived religion; sexual orientation or perceived sexual orientation; disability or perceived
disability and any crime motivated by hostility or prejudice against a person who is transgender
or perceived to be transgender."

What is community cohesion?
Community cohesion is not a precise term and can be interpreted in many ways. Broadly
speaking, it is about creating a sense of belonging, valuing diversity, tackling inequalities and

promoting interaction to develop positive relationships within a community.

The Institute of Community Cohesion uses the definition:

“Community cohesion is widely used to describe a state of harmony or tolerance between
people from different backgrounds living within a community. Linked to the concept of social
capital and the idea that if we know our neighbours and contribute to community activity then we
are more likely to look out for each other, increase cohesion and minimise cost of dependency
on institutional care”.

Part | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services & Partnerships Plgggyé %\)/erview Committee - 2 February 2017



Hillingdon Context

Hillingdon has become more diverse with many areas seeing the proportion of white and ethnic
minority communities more evenly spread. At the same time, the Borough is experiencing
increases in the number of young people and a growing older population.

The impact of economic pressures and austerity measures on public services, inevitably places
a strain on families and communities as resources become reduced and access to support and
services are limited. Threats from extremism and terrorism have increased and can cause
conflict, tensions, prejudice and misunderstanding within communities.

Hillingdon’s approach has been not only to understand what our community cohesion
challenges are in Hillingdon and where in the Borough, risks to community cohesion are
greatest, but that it is also equally important to recognise where the positive contributions to
community cohesion are taking place and promote greater opportunities for building on those
positives and underpin the resilience within communities. Improving our knowledge of what
works and what helps can reduce the risk. Such as:

e Strong local leadership (political, community etc);

e Strong communication activity/strategy to engage with local communities;
¢ Visible local initiatives;

e Developing a local sense of civic pride;

e Uniting local people on issues affecting the Borough;

e Strong partnership approach to local solutions;

e Capacity building and sustainable approach to community engagement and community
development which is inclusive and embraces the diversity of the Borough.

What we are doing?

Tackling hate crime requires a holistic approach. Not only in dealing with reported incidents and
supporting victims but also in working together with partners and the wider community to build
resilience to the factors which influence hate crime and or divide communities such as the
influence of extremism.

In Hillingdon, through the joined up approach of the Strong and Active Communities Partnership
and the Safer Hillingdon Partnership, we are working together to address local challenges and
build stronger relationships.

Managing reports of hate crime

The Council's contact centre receive reports of hate crime and these are passed onto the ASBIT
team who should respond within 24 hours where possible. Case work is then undertaken by the
ASBIT team to work with victims of hate crime, to identify perpetrators if possible, ensure the
matter is reported to police and where the perpetrators are council tenants to ensure we take
actions relating to the terms of their tenancy. Complex cases can be referred to the CRMARAC
to enable a multi-agency problem solving approach. The police and other agencies are also
able to bring cases to the CRMARAC (Community Risk Multi Agency group) Chaired by the
Police, which also provides a governance role in ensuring that actions by all partners are taken
in a timely manner and are co-ordinated effectively.

Part | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services & Partnerships P%I;cge%\berview Committee - 2 February 2017



Partnership working

The Strong and Active Communities partnership works to address the following priorities:

1.

Community Cohesion and integration - working together to build more cohesive,
empowered and active communities in Hillingdon.

Residents involvement in sports, leisure, culture, volunteering and learning activities.

Monitoring community tensions - working together to understand local community dynamics
and identify potential or actual tensions and their impact.

Preventing Violent Extremism - working to ensure that issues that may give rise to
community tension or which might result in violent extremism are addressed, and supporting
the management of critical incidents.

Some examples of work delivered under the partnership, facilitated by the council include:

Supporting partners in the delivery of community cohesion and integration related projects
including: ESOL, Hayes Carnival, Junior Citizens, Schools community cohesion partnership,
Adult learning, learn to be well programme

Supporting Hillingdon Inter Faith Network in developing its activities, 2016 celebrated ten
years of HIFN. The annual peace walk which is led by the Mayor, Borough Commander and
local faith leaders also celebrated its 10" year.

Supporting the Women in the Community Network in developing its activities: Celebrating
international women's days, with 400+ women attending an information fayre at Botwell
library and hosted an empowering women event held at Brunel University.

Supporting the Hillingdon Traveller Forum
Supporting local BAME community organisations

Working in partnership with the police to monitor and co-ordinate an appropriate response
on matters relating to community tensions and Preventing violent extremism in the borough

Partnership working with community groups/ services to bring about cohesion and
integration

Work with schools including, providing support in relation to current legislation and advice
on the embedding of British Values across the curriculum and the development of character
education, utilising the reach of schools to facilitate cohesion in the wider community and
community groups, leading to improvements in outcomes and early preventative work. For
example: Celebrated ten years of the schools inter faith programme in 2016 (led by
Swakeleys school), Performance at Beck Theatre by 7 local schools - "together we can
make a change" - presentation of community cohesion through music and song, bringing
together local schools to establish the schools community choir - Hayes, who perform at
Hayes carnival and other community events.

Measuring the outcomes of local area based work, projects and activities on community
relations

Review of the groups methods of working including the introduction of new themes to
secure effective outcomes and efficient working between partners

Themes of work identified for 2016/17

Volunteering
Areas/Estates/Residents
Schools

Part | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services & Partnerships Plgggyé %/erview Committee - 2 February 2017



Events, festivals and use of green spaces
Isolated groups

Communication and access

Preventing Violent Extremism

Managing community tensions/ safety concerns

Implementing the Prevent Duty

The Council has taken the lead in:

e Co-ordinating and managing the Hillingdon Prevent Partnership - developing a local action
plan and providing advice, guidance and support to partners on the Prevent strategy and
duty;

e  Support for vulnerable individuals - co-ordinating the Hillingdon multi-agency Channel panel
and ensuring governance through the children and adults safeguarding boards;

e |nformation sharing and identification of local needs;

e Training and awareness raising - ensuring staff are aware of their responsibility to report
and refer concerns. Approx 3,000 staff from agencies and organisations (including schools)
across the borough have received this training;

e Work with our communities, supporting the work of Hillingdon Inter faith network and
ensuring there are strong relationships in place with faith communities;

e Emerging challenges, understanding risk and current threats.

Priorities for Hillingdon

e Ensuring Radical groups and speakers do not have the opportunity to promote their views
and recruit in Hillingdon.

e Ensuring the influence of extremist groups (including far right) in the borough is managed.

e Ensuring anyone identified as being vulnerable is offered appropriate support.

e Work with the local community and local partners to prevent people, particularly vulnerable
young people from travelling to areas of conflict

e Maintaining good relations between different faiths and the diverse communities in the
borough

Engagement and awareness activity

Schools work: as previously described above. In addition, a project is being developed with
schools, Uxbridge College and Brunel University to look at tackling issues relating to extremism
and hate crime through a debating project - which will enable students to develop skills in critical
thinking and looking at two sides of an argument, whilst improving language and literacy skills
as well as self-confidence.

Police - Hayes: The community police officers in Hayes have been working closely with local
Ward councilors, council departments and community groups to improve relations and
engagement. Initiatives have included, Solidarity in Hayes, women's groups, surgeries and
coffee mornings, English conversational groups, a community workshop to name a few.

Hillingdon Inter-Faith Network: HIFN aims to bring faith communities together in Hillingdon to
promote better understanding and positive relationships. HIFN works closely with the council
and other partners.

Part | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services & Partnerships P%I;cgeosvzerview Committee - 2 February 2017



Appendix A

Legislative Framework

The Equalities Act 2010 (section 149) put in place a ‘Public Sector Equality Duty’. This means
that a public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:
Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by
or under the Act « Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and person who do not share it « Foster good relations between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a statutory duty on responsible
authorities (which includes local authorities) to prevent crime and disorder, antisocial behaviour,
substance misuse and reducing reoffending in their area.

Public Order Act 1986 Section 4(A)(1) of the 1986 Act deals with the offence of causing
harassment, alarm or distress. A person is guilty of an offence if, with intent to cause a person
harassment, alarm or distress, s/he - “uses threatening, abusive or insulting words or behaviour
or disorderly behaviour; or displays any writing, sign or visible representation which is
threatening abusive or insulting, thereby causing that or another person harassment, alarm or
distress”.

Protection from Harassment Act 1997 There are two offences that arise under this statute
which may be relevant to the sanctioning of hate motivated harassment. The offence of
harassment: this arises under section 2 of the Protection from Harassment Act 1997. Under
this, the prosecution must prove: 1. That the Defendant had pursued a course of conduct on at
least two separate occasions; 2. That the Defendant's course of conduct amounted to
harassment of another — what constitutes ‘harassment' tends to be a matter of common sense
e.g. the repetition of racist or homophobic remarks could amount to harassment; 3. That the
Defendant knew or ought to have known that the course of conduct amounted to harassment.

Human Rights Act 1998 states that people should have: « The right to liberty « Freedom of
thought, conscience and religion, and freedom to express your beliefs « Freedom of expression
* Freedom of assembly and association « The right not to be discriminated against in respect of
these rights and freedoms * The right to peaceful enjoyment of your property ¢ The right to an
education

Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015

Places a Duty on all public sector organizations to deliver against the Government's Prevent
strategy. Within this Duty is a specific role for the Local Authority in providing leadership and co-
ordination of local activity with partners.

Prevent Aims and Objectives:

Aim: To stop people becoming terrorists or supporting terrorism.

Objectives: To:

1.Respond to the ideological challenge of terrorism and the threat we face from those who
promote it.

2. Prevent people from being drawn into terrorism and ensure that they are given appropriate
advice and support

3. Work with sectors and institutions where there are risk of *radicalisation, which need to be
addressed. Priority areas include education, faith, health, criminal justice and charities.

Part | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services & Partnerships Plgggyé %/erview Committee - 2 February 2017



*Radicalisation is defined as the process by which people come to support terrorism and
**extremism and, in some cases, to then participate in terrorist groups.

** "Extremism is vocal or active opposition to fundamental British values, including democracy,
the rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect and tolerance of different faiths and beliefs.
We also include in our definition of extremism calls for the death of members of our armed

forces, whether in this country or overseas” (HM Government Prevent Strateqgy 2011)

Government Strateqy

The Casey review 2016

This review into opportunity and integration by Dame Louise Casey, was commissioned in July
2015 by the then Prime Minister David Cameron and Home Secretary Theresa May and
published in December 2016.

The focus of the review was to ‘consider what could be done to boost opportunity and
integration in our most isolated and deprived communities’. It was prompted by a number of
factors including:

e The unprecedented pace and scale of population change and immigration, particularly in
deprived areas;

Recovery from recession and implications for different groups;

Concerns about the future of public services;

Concerns about terrorism;

Problems of social exclusion among ethnic minority groups and poorer white British
communities in some areas.

The review made a number of recommendations:

e Build local communities' resilience in the towns and cities where the greatest challenges
exist.

e Improve integration of communities in Britain and establish a set of values around which
people from all different backgrounds can unite.

e Reduce economic exclusion, inequality and segregation in our most isolated and deprived

communities and schools.

Working with schools

Overcoming cultural barriers to employment

Improving English language provision

Improving understanding how housing and regeneration schemes/ policy impact on

integration/ segregation

Stronger safeguards for children not in mainstream education

e Increase standards of leadership and integrity in public office

Governments Hate crime Action Plan July 2016 - Action Against Hate

Sets out the Government's programme of actions to tackle issues of hate crime to 2020.

Part | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services & Partnerships P%I;cge%\aerview Committee - 2 February 2017



Main themes include:

e Preventing hate crime by challenging the beliefs and attitudes that can underlie such crimes

e Responding to hate crime in our communities with the aim of reducing the number of hate
crime incidents.

e Increasing the reporting of hate crime, particularly from communities who traditionally under
report.

e Improving support for the victims of hate crime

e Building our understanding of hate crime through improved data collection.

Underlying the plan are two key themes - working in partnership with communities and joining
up work across the hate crime strands to ensure best practice is understood and drawn upon.

Part | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services & Partnerships Plgzliigyé %/erview Committee - 2 February 2017



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Agenda ltem 9

MODERN SLAVERY

Officer Contact: Nikki Cruickshank
Telephone: 01895 256 708

REASON FOR ITEM

The Chairman of the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee
requested that an update on Modern Slavery be presented to the Committee.

OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE
The Committee is asked to note the report.
INFORMATION

Modern Slavery can take many forms including the trafficking of people, forced labour, servitude
and slavery.

Any consent victims have given to their treatment will be irrelevant where they have been
coerced, deceived or provided with payment or benefit to achieve that consent.

Children (those aged under 18) are considered victims of trafficking, whether or not they have
been coerced, deceived or paid to secure their compliance. They need only to have been
recruited, transported, received or harboured for the purpose of exploitation.

The term Modern Slavery captures a whole range of types of exploitation, many of which occur
together. These include but are not limited to:

e Sexual exploitation
This includes but is not limited to sexual exploitation and sexual abuse, forced
prostitution and the abuse of children for the production of child abuse images/videos.

e Domestic servitude
This involves a victim being forced to work in usually private households, usually
performing domestic chores and childcare duties. Their freedom may be restricted and
they may work long hours often for little or no pay, often sleeping where they work.

e Forced labour
Victims may be forced to work long hours for little or no pay in poor conditions under
verbal or physical threats of violence to them or their families; it can happen in various
industries, including construction, manufacturing, laying driveways, hospitality, food
packaging, agriculture, maritime and beauty (nail bars). Often victims are housed
together in one dwelling.

e Criminal exploitation
This can be understood as the exploitation of a person to commit a crime, such as pick-
pocketing, shop-lifting, cannabis cultivation, drug trafficking and other similar activities
that are subject to penalties and imply financial gain for the trafficker.

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 37



e Other forms of exploitation
Organ removal; forced begging; forced benefit fraud; forced marriage and illegal
adoption.

Local Operational activity

Trafficking is an issue for all local authorities but is more prominent where there are major ports
of entry.

The responsibility to protect young people who are trafficked is a co-ordinated effort from a
number of agencies. The first agency that young people come into contact with on their arrival
into the UK is the UKBA who make the initial decisions and refer young people to the local
authority where necessary. Local authorities work closely with partner agencies through the
Local Safeguarding Children Board to put in place arrangements to combat trafficking. This
includes the prevention and deterrence of trafficking through co-ordinated overseas and point of
entry policing activity (including action by immigration services, law enforcement agencies,
airport authorities, and overseas embassies).

A multi-agency, fortnightly operational meeting is held to discuss the risks and needs of all
children arriving at the airport in the previous two weeks. This enables key information and
intelligence to be shared, and protective measures to be applied to those children most at risk.

Hillingdon works with the young people in terms of managing their risk at point of entry into the
UK; engaging with the young person about potential risks and also managing their contact with
strangers. Trafficking is a relatively newly identified challenge for all agencies both locally,
nationally, and internationally with examples of good practice across all agencies, and we keep
under review trends and share best practice.

Duty to Report

From 1 November 2015, specified public authorities have had a duty to notify the Secretary of
State of any individual encountered in England and Wales who they believe is a suspected
victim of slavery or human trafficking. This duty is intended to gather statistics and help build a
more comprehensive picture of the nature and scale of modern slavery.

The ‘duty to notify’ provision is set out in Section 52 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015, and
applies to the following public authorities in England and Wales at the time of publication
(additional public authorities can be added through regulations):

(a) a chief officer of police for a police area;
(b) the chief constable of the British Transport Police Force;
(c) the National Crime Agency;

(d) a county council;

(e) a county borough council;

(f) a district council;

(g9) a London borough council;

(h) the Greater London Authority;

(i) the Common Council of the City of London;
(j) the Council of the Isles of Scilly;

(k) the Gangmasters Licensing Authority.

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 38



Home Office Strategic Communications have produced a partner fact sheet and a poster to help
raise awareness of a duty to notify/reporting requirements for modern slavery and human

trafficking amongst relevant organisations.

Hillingdon Local Safeguarding Children's Board and Safeguarding Adult Board are responsible
for raising awareness across the partnership.

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Agenda ltem 10

CABINET FORWARD PLAN

Contact Officer: Luke Taylor
Telephone: 01895 250 693

REASON FOR ITEM

The Committee is required to consider the Forward Plan and provide Cabinet with any comments it
wishes to make before the decision is taken.

OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE
1. Decide to comment on any items coming before Cabinet.
2. Decide not to comment on any items coming before Cabinet.

INFORMATION

1. The Forward Plan is updated on the 15" of each month. An edited version to include only items
relevant to the Committee’s remit is attached below. The full version can be found on the front
page of the ‘Members’ Desk’ under ‘Useful Links’.

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

1. Members decide whether to examine any of the reports listed on the Forward Plan at a future
meeting.

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



aoueul{ =a4

suoseal
B uoisag
d1eAld
/219nd

uoneljsiulWpY = QY 8Je) [BIJ0S = DS S9JIAISS SJUBPISAY = Sy :Sjuawieda( [19Uno)H

SUETEEY
INO pue J3Y1o Ydoes YM }03Uuod pue djerado
01 Ajlep 3sn J12UN0?) 3Y) SSOIDR SIDIAISS pue
SIqUIB ‘Hels Jje yoiym A3ojouyda) pueqpeold| suoidauuod 1puldiu|
Ayneddw oduelg ]e13USSSS JO UoISIA0Id SY3 10} }D0BIIUOD B ISPISUOD|  pue puegpeoig 10}
(€) arenud YPIN -SH|  ueyreuo[ D W 1M 12uIge)) ‘aS1D19X3 JUsWaJnd0ld e BUIMO)|04|  31DBIUOD JO plemy| G9|
(S1!H poomyyioN)
SNIH P peoy poomyeQ
OOMYMON "SJUDPISaI 0} SIDIAISS J2yem oy pue Suneay| R (disiny 1s9M) asiy
‘dnsiny 3)qenas spinoad 1im 3103foad sypom siy] 1duiged) | plaiyreaH ‘(Asjmo)d)
ISOM 01 pajuasaud aq |1im sanuadoud peoy poomyeQ 1No) ejapuey
1S0d1Uad odbuelg ‘yinos 13 9SIY PIPIYIESH ‘HN0D) BJ]apUR| 1B SI)I0q| - SI9)l0g Jeunwiwod)
(€) arenud Aen - gy| ueyreuo[ D 93puUgxN| JeuNwWWod sy} 9oe|dal 01 JISPUS} PIPUIWILIOIDI Y jo awade|day| 59|
"S9DIAIDS SUIAIT JUSpUSdapU| IWRS JO
uoIsInold aYy} aindoud 0} (Sdq) waisAs Buiseydind
1pInodod 39D SlweuAQ Y3 WOl JO J]ed 03 dduel))y Uopuo] 1sapn|  wdlsAs Suiseydind
euy / mopieys spuowwiis Y3IM JUSWISJ8Y SS90y Ue OJUl J9JUD 01 SADIAISS|  dlweuAq aduely
(€) @1enud a1Zng - DS pireq 1D Vv/N s,uaJpjiyd Joyj 1ouIqed) woly jerosdde 3295 0] uopuoiIsopM| 91
uoddng
HolleH 1oddng 13 uoiuanald 3 UOIJUARId
dA91S / sauo| AIH YHM S2DIAISS YjesH 2A11onpolday B 1enxas|  AlH YHM SDIAISS
32Ao[ / 121Q auioynod) pa1e1393u| 343 10} JapIn0Id 9IAISS PIPUSLILIOISI| Y)eaH dAdNpoiday
(€) @1eALd 198IN - 4/ Sy dniyd o 1IV| 943 03 10BA1UOD € JO pIeme Sy} JSPISUOD ||iM J3UIqe])| 7B [enxas pajesdaju)| 96|
1PUN0D
3y} Joj uonesado siredas Buisnoy ayj 03 poddns UOISU)IXd
oduelg Jo a8uel e Suipinoid 15e43U0D JUSLIND BY) O} }ORIUOD) SIeay
(€) ?@eAud| MaN N0dS Audd - Sy|  ueyieuo[ D 11V | UoISua1xa Ue 01 USAIS 3q |)IM UOIIRISPISUOD J2UIqe) :sireday SuisnoH| 491

(Aepsany) 7107 Arenue[ /| - 33uiqe)

yjuow Yoea wWa}| pJepueis = |S

Page 43

uoISIdap Ay} uo
uone}nsuo)

uoljewsioyul
Iayyiny 1o}
1RIU0)) 1DIHO

9)qisuodsay
(s)lequiay
auiqe)

]1PUno>
nn4

Aq uoispap
Jeul4

(s)prem

s|ie}ap 1ayun4

suoIsPaQ
Suiwoodn

§34




‘ue)d laquiay
S3DIAIRS pJemio Y} JO puS 3y} Je Pa3Sl] e SIS prepuels puUIqe) ayy Aq
denows( 953U} JO S|Ie1ap - SUUSY PJepue)S UO YIuoWl Yoes|  yluow ydes uayey
angnd snouep -av 1\ snolep SUOISIDRP JO JaqUUNU B Syewl SIaquud|y 1auige) swid)| piepuels| |S
3dd
spuowwis /10T Jaquisydas
pireQ u| Surpels sasinod 3ujuresy/a39))0d Suiptedal
D/ sNw uae} 9 03 SUOISIIP dUdNYUI Aewl Yd1ym
slapjoyayels uewmog| sej3noq D/ ‘suoindo Jodsuely J19y} Jo siaules) 91 3sod swioyul
/siasn dIAISS| X3y / WYBUAA | IGW 1004ppPNd JUSWINJ0P SIY] JuaWdlelS Adljod Modsues]|  juawaiels Adijod
angnd / syuaied appef - sy Aey D snolep 9] 350d 9y} 01 suolsinal pasodoud Japisuod o] |  Modsuei] 91 1sod| 8SL

/107 Arenuel[ - suoispa Jaquua|y 12Ul

'SNjels Audspedy 0} BISAUOD 0] YSim

Page 44

uosJaned oduelg oym sjooyds 03 sasea) 3uo) o Sunueid 11PUNo0D) Ay} SUOISISAUOD)
an9nd 12eWIW - SY|  ueyreuo[ D snouep| 104 eroidde ya3s 03 3ouIgeD) 03 Hodal plepuels Awapedy| s
‘pa19)dwiod S93)IWWI0)
USYm pue se 3auiqed) ayi Ag uopessapisuod| AuinIdS B M3IAIAQ
an9nd gl gl - ay gl W 104 SUOIIBPUSWILIODRI MIIADY AdIjod Joleyy| Adijod woly spoday| IS
yodau
puewAeypn oduelg ‘uoiyisod jeyded pue anusA3J $]1DUNOY) Y3 Jie1dp ul| Sulojuow - 38png
angnd Ined - @4d| ueyreuo[ D NIv| 3no Sumas podas Ajyruow e saARd31 J2uUIgeD) YL JPuno) Ajyauow| IS
XOD|IM SPY2IW Ayunuwiwod Japim
/ uosianed oduelg SY} pue S1USPISAI 12USq 1By} SuolresiuedIo 10303s yoday sasea
(€) @renud 12eYdIW - SY|  ueyreuo[ D V| Areiunjon o3 sases) pajunodsip uo Hodai Jejnday 101295 Areyunjop| IS
oduelg "y3noiog ay} ul payesnpa uaJpjiyd
ueyjeuo| 104 sade)d JUBIDIHNS JSANSP 01 3Dkl uo daay pue
youi4 Aqqog s ED) sa1)1oe} apes3dn 03 Japio Ul dwwes3oid jeyded)
/390 Jow)ed spuowwis Jooyds ay3 ssai30.4d 03 J9pI0 Ul SUoISIPIP Alessadau| arepdn awwreidold
an9nd uea[ - gy piaeq 1D snolep Aue 3sanbai pue 1auige) ayepdn |im podal siyy Jende) jooyds| IS
sauo[ 3gd 'SRDIIRS PIIYD AydesH
a2Ao[ / Aydinyy spuowwis 61-0 Y3 104 Japinoid 3DIAISS PIPUSWILIODD] SIDIAIDS
29qnd wo] - Sy piaea 1o v Y} 10} 1DBAUOD B JSPISUOD |)IM J3uIge)| PIYD AyleaH 61- 0| 091
ajueuld =04 uonensiulwpy = QY oJe) |[e1o0S = OS SOJIAIaS SJuaplIsay = Sy :Sjuawpedaq [19uno) yjuow ysea wa}| piepuels = |S
suoseal uoISIDap 3y} Uo uonewsojul]  jqisuodsay IPuno>|  (s)prem s|ie1ap Jayung suoispag
uoIsIdd uone}Nsuo Iayuny Jo s)laquia n
® 3~>_M ! > Uﬂcou; Bu*_tnw, “ H%c_nm_u Aq co_m__““mm MC_EOuQD
/219nd Jeulq




Page 45

XO2)IM SPY2IW "AHUNWIWIOD JapIm
/ uosianed oduelg SY} pue S1USPISAI }I§2USq 1By} suoljesiuedIo 10303s }oday sasea
(€) areAud| MaN 12eYdIW - SY|  ueyreuo[ D IIV| Areiunjon 01 sasea) pajunodsip uo podal Jenday 101235 Arejunjop|  |S
oduelg "ysnoiog ay} ui payednpa ualpjiyd
ueyjeuo| 104 sade|d JUBIDIHNS JSANSP 01 ydes} uo daay pue
youi4 Aqqog s ElD) san)1oe} opes3dn 03 Japio ul Swwes3oid Jeyded)
(€) arennd S99))Nsuod| /39O Jowjed spuowwiis 1o0y>s ay3 ssai304d 03 JpI0 Ul SUOISIdIp Atessadau| arepdn awwreidold
/2nand| MaN a1elodio) ues| - sy piAeq 1D snolep Aue 1sanbay pue 1auige) ayepdn im podal siy) Jende) jooyds| S
"92IAI3S SalleIqI S|O0YdS 2yl pue saueIqr] uop3uliH
s,ysnoiog ay} Joj sjelarew Suipeal pajedosse| jo ysnoiog uopuo
pUe $300q UOI12]4 UON pUe Uondi4 UaIpjiyd| ayi Joj suonisinboy
spreydry SIMa pue }npy Yiog aseydind o3 ypomawlel e asijian| Areiqr] jo SupiaIeS
(€) deAd| MIN INed - SH pPreyory nid 1IV| ©0113uige) sy wouy jerodde 323s jjim 1odaa sy g AiddnsayL| /91
eI
1004ippnd Aey
11D 3 oduelg
ueyjeuo|
D ‘39D "193pNg 3y} UO UOI}BPUIWILIOID] JIDY}
winio4 ZoIMIe spuowwis PUB WNJIO SJO0YdS SY} YHM Uol3e}nsuod 3Uimo)|o} L1/910Z
2N9hd| M3IN S]00Yy2S 1913d - Sy piaeQ 1D v 133png s]00YdS 3y} 33.3e 01 PIYSE ||IM JauIqe) 123png sjooyds| 99|
sioAedajel
13 S9SSaUISN]
yum
uoIeyNSuod "Jenoidde 1oy} J1ouno) )Ny 03 paLa)al 9q
Aloinyels uay3 im 123pNnq aY3 ‘UoISISP S 3auUige)) 03 193lgnsg
pue ssascoud "UOI}eJPISUOD 104 SIUSI YYH Y3} Spn)dul osje MYOMIWY S
2913IWWI0) M s1y] “ssedA unoj Buimo)joy ayi 1oy suondafoid| ADIM0Od B 139ANd
MIIAISAQ 3AIFEDIPUI 1M BUO]e ‘Uoe}NSUOD 104 81//10T /1izoe
Aonod oduelg Joj awwres3oid Jeuded pue 193pnq anIasal pund| - 81//10T ¥sed2104
ay1 ysnoayy ueyreuo[ D ]eI2USD) HeIp Y} SIPNPUI YdIYM ‘(441 W) Isedlo Jedueulq wia)
uoI}e}NSuod puewAeypn | 3gwW 1004ippnd JeldURUI{ WIS] wnipay Y3 4o} sjesodoid sjauiqed|  winipay - 198png
dNqnhd| M3IN 29nd Ined - A4 Aey mD|/1-994-€7 1IV| Y1 1no13s |)im podai siy) ‘uoney)nsuod 3uimoljo4 §,11PUn0) 8yl 9G¥
£10T Areniga 9} - 3ouIqe)
adueul4 =04 uolessiulwpy =gy 2a4ed |eld0g = DS SOIIAIBG SJUBPISAY = SY :sjudwedaq |Iouno) yjuow yoea waj| piepuels = |S
suoseal uoIsap 3y} uo uopjeuwtiojul 9)qisuodsay jPUNO)|  (s)prem s|ie1ap Jayying suoispag #¥
uoIsIdd uone}nsuo Iayuny 1o s)laqui n
® 2«>_hn_n_ _ > Uﬁcou; Eu*_tm. “ uuc_o_m_m Aq co_m__”“ww_ MC_E0uQD
/219nd Jeuiq



‘Snje)}S Auuspedy 0} LSAUOD 0} YSIM

XO2)IM S)PY2IW Ajunuwiwod Japim
/ uosianed oduelg SY} pue S1USPISAI 12USq 1By} suolyesiuedIo 10303s Hoday sasea
(€) @¥eAud| M3IN 12eYdIW - SY|  ueyreuo[ D V| Areiunjon o3 sases) pajunodsip uo Hodai Jejnday 101295 Areyunjop| IS
oduelg "y3noiog ay} Ul payesnpa uaJpjiyd
ueyjeuo| 104 sade|d JUBIDIHNS JSANSP 01 ydes} uo daay pue
youi4 Aqqog s ElD) sa1)1oe} apes3dn 03 Japio ul Swwes3oid Jeyded)
(€) arennd S99))NSuod| /39O Jow)ed spuowwiis Jooyds ay3 ssai304d 03 J2pI0 Ul SUoISIDIp Alessadau| arepdn awwreidold
/2an9nd| MIN djeiodiod) ues| - Sy pineq D snolep Aue 3sanbai pue 1auige) arepdn J)im podas siyy Jende) jooyds| IS
‘saluowl|  podai Sulioyiuoy
1eAM smoling (uonnquiuod Jadojansp) 9| oS uo Sulpusds suonedqo
ongnd| M3IN ®|0dIN - SY GIENEIs) IVl noge uonrewojul yum podas Supoyuow senday| Suluueld Apaueny|  |S
‘(pan1@2a1 uaaq aney
sjesodoud ay3 031 suoi13[qo ou I JaquuB|y 12UIgeD
33 Aq Jo) 12uige)) s,|1Puno)) ayi Aq uayel 9q usayy| sjesodold Aloinjers
ued UOISII3P i "UOofe}Nsuod Suipnipul ‘pamo)jo}| o uoneulwlidleg
3gd 99 1snw ssado.d Aloiniels e ‘siy} op 03 Japlo - Jo0Yd>s
s1a30y spuowwis SIIH P| U] "A13ua JO swloj 33143} 03 OM] LUOJ} S|ooyds Jolun| lowun[ apiIs|iH
2N9hd| M3IN BI}SUIA - SY piaed 1o OOMYLION | 3pIs||iH pue jueju| dpisjjiH puedxa o} pasodoid siy||  puejueju] 3pisjiH| 891
£10T Y21eW 91 - 13Ul
‘ue)d JERTEI,
S3DIAIRS pJemio4 343 JO puUS 3y} e palsl] 24 SW)l piepuels 1UIqe) 3y) Aq
dlenows( 9S9Y} JO S)Ie19p - SW)| PAepue)s Uo YIUow Ydes|  Yjuow yoea udey
ongnd| M3IN snouep -av 1\ snouep SUOISIDRP JO JaqUUNU € 3yew SIaquua|y 1auige) swid)| piepuels| |S

/19nd

Page 46

Jeutd

uosJaned oduelg oym sjooyds 03 sasea) 3uo) Jo Sunueid J1PUNOD) Y} SUOISI9AUOD)
ongnd| M3IN 1PeYdIW - SY|  ueyreuo[ D snouep| 10} jenosdde ya3s 03 32uIge) 03 Lodal plepuels Awapedy| |S
SDINIRS ‘pa3a)dwiod S9aRIWWO)
eTi=IplelVIEYg USYM pue se 1auige)) ayi Aq uopelapisuod | AunnIdS 1§ MIIAIRAQ
ongnd| M3aN -av gl gl 10} SUOIEPUSWILIODR MIIASY Adljod Joleyy| Adljod woly spoday| IS
yodau
puewAeypn oduelg ‘uoiyisod jeyded pue aNUSASI S )1PUNOY) Y3 Jeldp ul| Supojuow - 323png
onand| MIN Ined - @4| ueyreuo[ D NIv| Ino Sumas podas Ajyruow e saAR31 12uUIgeD) YL 1Puno) Ajyauow| IS
adueuld =Q4 uonensiulwpy =Y 94eJ [elo0S = DS  SaJIAIAS SHUAPISAY = SY :sjuawpedaq [1Duno) yjuow ysea wa}| piepuels = |S
suoseal uoIsap 3y} uo uopjeuwtiojul 9)qisuodsay ]1PUN0) (s)prem S)re1ap 19yung suolsag J24
uoIsIdd uone}nsuo Iayuny 1o s)laqui n
® 2«>_hn_n_ _ > Uﬁcou; Eu*_tnw. “ Huc_a_m_u Aq co_m__”“ww_ mc_50uQD



Juawadeuew JepueUly 3UOAS S,)1DUNOD

oduelg 9y Supueyua Jayuny ‘sease asayl ul aJnypuadxa| juawdinb3z jesausn
ueyyeuo| o Aunnuos 1areas8 s)qeus 01 9|0 Arenuef |z uo pue ainjuing
D pue 19uIge) Aq paaide sjojuod jeroisdde ainypuadxa ‘quawdinb3
JUSWINd01d| 3gW 1004ippnd mau 3uimo))o4 ‘ainyipuadxa Areuonalsip Jo sadAy 1D :jeroiddy
an9nd auopN| ajesodiod - g4 Aey D V/N| Urenad 1o} spuny jo asea)as sy} ‘Jou Jo anoudde o) aimypuadx3y| |S
-91qissod Ajgeonoesd a1aym ‘UaAIZ 3q 1M uSe}
9q 03 suoisap A3y Aue 1oy porad as130u 49Ny
V "uonedijiiel Joj Sunasw 1auige) Jusnbasgns
e 0} papodas pue Aem jensn ay3 ui paysiignd
3q )M SUOISAP Yons Auy "sadueIsuundID Juddin
SEBIIVELS ul 19UIqeD) 3Y1 01 PIAISSDI 3 ISIMISYIO PNOM
31eAld denowa| Igw 1004ippnd By SUOISIDP xewl 03 Ajioyine JeuoiIn}isuod suols|ap
/219nd gl -Qav Aey D snolep AJtessadau oy} sey 11DUNOD) 3y} JO Jopea 3y ||]9Ad)-12ulge) uadin|  |S

2Nqnd| MAN

snouep

S3DIAIDS
JlenoWR(
-av

YIUOW Ydoes paIapIsuod

[1\4

snolep

3q Aew 1ey} (|S) SWS}| pJepuels SUoISIDA JAqUUS|N Ul

‘ueld

plemIo 3y} JO puS 3y} Je pa3sl) Je SWaH prepuels
959U} 4O S|Ie1ap - SWIA) pJepuels Uo Yiuow yoea
SUOISID3P JO JaqUUNU B )W SJaqulaly 1aulqe)

Jlaquiay
13uIqe) 3y) Aq
yiuow yoes uaje)
swie}| plepuels

£10¢ Yd21ep - suoisidag 1oquuaiy Ul

‘snjels >Ew_umu< 0] HMaAUO0D 0] ysim

Page 47

uosJaned oduelg oym sjooyds 0} sasea] 3uoj jo Sunuesd J1DUNoD) Yy SUOISI9AUOD)
ongnd| M3aN 19eWIW - SY|  ueyreuo[ D snolep| Jojenosdde ya3s 03 12uige) 03 Modas prepuels Awpapedy| s
S2DIAIRS ‘pa39)dwiod S991HWWO)
eTi=IplelVIEYg USYM pue se 1auige)) 3y} Aq uoprelapisuod| AuinIdS 1§ MIIAIAQ
ongnd| M3aN -av gl gl 10} SUOIEPUSWILIODI MIIASY Adljod Joleyy| Adljod woly spoday| IS
yodau
puewAeypn oduelg ‘uoiyisod jeyded pue aNUSASJ S )1PUNOY) Y3 Jeldp ul| Supoyuow - 323png
anand| MIN Ined - @4| ueyreuo[ D NIv| 1no SBumas podas Ajyruow e saAR31 12UIge) YL 1Puno) Ajyauow| IS
adueuld =04 uolessiuiwpy =gy 2a4ed |eld0g = DS SOIIAIBG SJUBPISAY = SY "mucwEtNQwD [1vuUno) yjuow yoea waj| piepuels = |S
suoseal uoIsap 3y} uo uopjeuwtiojul 9)qisuodsay ]1PUN0) (s)prem S)re1ap 19yung suolsag J24
uoIsIdd uolje})nsuo Iayuny 1o, s)laqua n
® 2«>_hn_n_ _ > Uﬁcou; Eu*_tnw. “ Huc_nm_u Aq co_m__”“ww_ wc_Eo”vQD
/>hand Jeuld



Page 48

12uIge) Aq paieds)ap
sjueynsuod Aue jo yJusuiuiodde sy 3dadde osje o)
's3sod jJuawiaBeurwl JOJUSS 10} dN|eA SIY} UM
s1aom Aduade pue Aresodwial jenpiaipul uiodde jyeis Aouage
(€7 01 "'000'0SF PUe 00O0'GF US2M12( S 150D 3y} 3 sjuejnsuo)
9eALld snoueA| 21eudoidde se V/N| @13ym spueynsuod jo uswiuiodde ayy Japisuod o] joudwiuioddy| |S
‘Awspedy ue Jo 103da11Q sjuswiujoddy
10 JOUIDN0N) © 3 0} Jaquid|y Aue asuioyine Awapeoy
os|e 0] °“suolNHIsuod Apoq 3uluiano3 jooyds Suisuoyiny
SDINISS 39D 0} sadueyd Aue anoidde o3 pue siousano3 Ajloyine / sloulanon
d3eIDoWw™( spuowwiis 1e20] Jo spuswiuioddeas ayew pue syuawiuiodde pue saipog
a1qnd -av pineq D Vv/N ajeuiwou ‘syusunjuiodde snoidde o) | Sujuisaon jooyds| S
oduelqg
ueyeuo|
D pue
(€7 uosIalred | 3gwW 1004ppnd ‘sasiwaid SM3IADI
31eAld W - SY Aey D 51| J3Y10 pue |eIDISWILUOD JO SMIIASI JUI JISPISUOD O] JUd1 I9pIsuUod 0] | |S
'SI9PIO
Buipuels 10e13U0) puUE JUSWIRIND0Id 3y} Ul INO 13S
Bupjew-uoisap 1o} spjoysaiyy Jod se ‘suondesuesy sjemaual pue
]e1IaWwiod eiA Jo saiiadoud ‘suonesiuediol  SI9pualins ‘sased)
Auadoud oduelg ‘s9ss2UISN( JO AJaL/eA © 10) S|eMaU) 9Se3)| ‘SIS |eIdIdWIWO0D
(€) @renud ajesodio) - SY|  ueyreuo[ D snoueA|  puUe SI9PUDLINS ‘sased) ‘syual snoen anoidde o] | pue sdoys ‘ssauisng|  |S
S10])IPUNo)
piem
Aq usyenspun
prem
3yl UIym 3gW 1004ippnd *3)2A2 1ejn3a1 40 Ajyruow e uo suop 3q |jIm
uoI}e}NSuUod 19199 M| Aey D/ SNIW SIY3 - SJO]j1PUN0Y) piepA woly suoiyedfjdde Suimol)oy dAIeRIU|
an9nd ed07 BU3PH -S|  seI8nog D w s193png ptepn Jo Suipuads ay3 anoidde o) 193png prep| IS
adueuld =4 uonessiulwpy =@y 9J4e) [elo0S = DS SaJIAIAG SHUBPISAY = SY :sjuawpedaq [1Duno) yjuow ysea wa}| piepuels = |S
suoseal UOISID3P 3y} UO uonewuoyul|  9jqisuodsay JPunoy|  (s)prem s|ie1ap Jayung suoispag
uoIsIdd uone}nsuo 13yuny Jo s)laquid n
® 3«>_._n_n_ _ > uuﬁcou: Bu*_tm “ “M:_nm_m Aq co_m__”“mw_ mc_EOuQD
/219nd Jeuiq



Page 49

smoiing "SI9pJO uonenN3ay diyjel] pue Juswanoidwl
yuay D/ Aenb are ‘BundA> ‘Bupjjem ‘janesy jooyds awuwreidoid
sa)mouy|| IgW 1004ippnd ‘AYayes peou ‘Bupyred ‘wijeas angnd ay3 410} SSWAYDS uonejuawa)dw
angnd pineq - Sy Aey D gl Buipn)oul swwei3o.d uoneluawd)dw| |ed07] Jedoq - Modsuei}| S
syuawAed
(€71 "000LF 40 $599X3 Ul |1PUNOY) 3y} 03 Jurejduuod Aue uonesuadwod
dleAlld snouen| a1eudoidde se e/u| 0} uonejal ur spuswAed uonesuadwod anoidde o) anoiddeo)| |s
(€7 oduelg "000'05F 43pun Inq 000SF O SSIIX3 Ul e S}O 9lIM
a1eAld snoueA|  ueyyeuof D ©/U| 1By} S}JO S}IM /1qgop Jo ased jenpinlpul snoidde o) |  /igapanoiddeo]| |S
S9|mouy| smoiing
an9nd pineq - Sy yuay D Ogl| sannoes uissold apinoid 03 sswayds anosdde o | sBuissol) uelisapad| IS
sawdYds
papunj JUNoY
anuaAay Supjied
dnoun Sa)mouy| smoling uof3oe aInyny pue sawaYydS
aNqnd uosrel diyjel ] pireq - Sy yua) D gl UO 3pIdap pue paAIadaI suonizad Japisuod o) Awjesed07| |S
"s3uLlesH uoniad se paguedre 3q ||Im uIqe)
SIINIRS 9S3Y] "UOI1® 3ININJ UO SPIdXAP pue suolesiuedio 9y} Jo jonuod
Jlenows( pue sjuapisal [e20] Aq panisdal suonizad| 3y} Japun sidirew
angnd - @y| 91eudoisdde se odl JO JaquUNU B JSPISUOD |)IM SISQUIS|N 1DUIgeD) mnoqge suonnidd| IS
Ayddns
"JauIqe)) 03 ydeq papodal 3q |)im suonisinboe|  Buisnoy s,j1ouNo)
yons "y3noltog ay1 uiyym yo03s 3uisnoy|  ays 104 sansadoid
3)qeplojje ayy asealdul 03 spuny jended yyH Suisn 91eAld mau Jo
(€Y 390|3gw 1004ippnd sanadoid mau jo aseydand sy ‘palinbas usym|  sapsadoud j1puno)
S1eAlld Jawied ueaf Aey D Ogl| pue se ‘sujuuialap Aew 1DUNO) Y3 Jo Jopea]ayl| xdjoaseyundayl| IS
SEREIN
1duIge) Jo 1xuIqe)) Aq panoidde Ajsnoiaaid
pue 123png Jended ay) ul paai3e Apealje sswayds
oduelg Aue Joj jended jo asea)as 3y} suluISlap 03 (spodal
(€1 ueyeuo| ]ENPIAIPUI JEUOISEID0 SE ||aMm Se) spodas Ajyuow
S1eAld D pue JO saydieg J19pea 9y} 10 13uIqe) ayl Aq oyl
awos 3duURUL 3gW 1004ppnd PaUILLISISP SIMISYI0 SS3)un ‘lercsdde saquuiay spun4
ng 2n9nd a1elodio) snoLieA Aey D Ogl| Jewuossainbai sajuow jended e jo asesjpuay)| Jende) joasespy| IS
adueuld =4 uonessiulwpy =@y 9J4e) [elo0S = DS SaJIAIAG SHUBPISAY = SY :sjuawpedaq [1Duno) yjuow ysea wa}| piepuels = |S
suoseal uoISIDap 3y} Uo uonewojul]  9jqisuodsay 1Puno)|  (s)prem s|ie1ap Jayung suoispag
uoIsIdd uone}nsuo 13yuny Jo s)laquid n
® 3«>_M _ > uuﬂcou; hwu*_tm “ uuc_nm_u Aq co_m__”“mw_ mc_EOuQD
/219nd Jeuiq



Page 50

(4ANN)
(€7 oduelg 1PUNo) ay) Aq uolisap e 3uimo)|oy sa)el ssauisnq 0}
aleAld yuws qoy| ueyreuof D Dgl| soresssauisng o3 uonejas ul sjeadde suiwisisp o] | uonejas ui sjeaddy|  |S
115UN0D) Y} UJOJ JUSWIILILIOD |eldueuly
© 10} JuswaiIinbai ou si a1ay3 a1aym Suipuny spiq
an9nd snouen| arendosdde se e/u ]eUIR1IX 10} SpIq J0 Supjeud Yy} asoyine o Suipunyjeuwm1x3| IS
syuawanoidw
JeluswiuoIIAUg
luewyg ShwW 'syoa(oud jo Jenosdde jo awwei3oid
angnd pawreyow - SY|  se)i3noqg D SnoLeA| 33 J9PISUOD 0 PAAySe ] |)IM JaGUUBY 13UIgeD) 3y | snesAiyd| IS
"uone|siss)
Y3IM 9DUBPIODDE Ul PUE PIBA SI 9J130N SY3 2I9Yym DY €661
95D JB3 Ul SUOISUSIXD 3Y) JO JURIS PUSWIWIODAI| Y} JI9PUN S1B)} JO
m modai ay) €66l 12V uawdopnsq| sisalalu| pjoyasea
ueqJn pue 3uISNOH WI0JaY ployases JO UOISUd)Xd Os|e
auloynod ay1 Jopun uonedndde ue paAidai sey Japjoyaly pue siapjoyases)
HopuajO pireq diiyd SE |IDUN0D) 3Y1 2J3YM S1B}J [BIDASS IO} SISUUI 0} adeds
(€7 / uosiared| ))D pue oduelg P1OYa5e3] 93 JO UOISU1XS UE JIPISUOD OS|e|  1JO] JO ‘UOISISAUOD
SleAld MW -SY| ueyreuo[ D Dgl| pue aceds 1jo) 01 uonejas Ul SaNSSI Aue JapISuod o] pue‘oes| S
34> Ayoyany 18307 343 4o Jleyaq
(€71 Apauuay| spuowwiis uo way} anoidde 03 Jay1aym SpIdap pue sjusalAed sjuawAied
S)eAld Slueq - Sy pireq D o4gl Aouepunpay j00yds 10y s1sanbai Japisuod o] | Aouepunpay jooyds| IS
suoIsap
's19p1Q Suipuels| Auadoud pue Japua)
10BJIUOD) PUB JUSWINJ0I Y} YHM 3duepiodde| Sulpnjdul ‘siaquisay
(€71 u| suoidesuel} / suoispap Auadoid asuoyine|  3auiqe) o3 }uIqed)
SleAld pue spiq ‘s19pua} 1dadde ‘suoisap Atessadau Aue Aq suoiseaQ
/2n9nd snouen| ayendosdde se Dgl| ew o1 13uiqe) Aq pareda)ap Ajsnoinaid aiaypn parwedspanv| IS
Rquiapy
1uIge) 's398pnq 11ouno) ul papn)aul Ajsnoiaaid
ueAS)I B sI Buipuny 2JaYM ealy 01010 JISY3 Ul YOS TF
3gW 1004ippnd pUB 3 0GF US9M13q PanjeA SUOIIeLIEA 10BI13U0D pue SIapua]
(€) @renud snoLeA Aey 1D B/U| SUOISUI]Xd }2BIIUO0D ‘SI9pud) ‘suonelonb 1dadde o) joadueidandy| IS
adueuld =4 uonessiulwpy =@y 9J4e) [elo0S = DS SaJIAIAG SHUBPISAY = SY :sjuawpedaq [1Duno) yjuow ysea wa}| piepuels = |S
suoseal uoISIap 3y} uo uonewuoyul|  3)qisuodsay 1PUNo]|  (s)prem s|ie1ap Jayung suoispag
uols|d uoneynsuo 13yuny 1o s)Jaqud n
? 3m>_hn_n_ e uuﬁcou; hwu*_tm “ Hu:_nm_u Aq co_m__”“ww_ Buiwoadn
/219nd Jeuiq



"asuodsas ay3 Jjo-usis
0} JaqUUB| 13UIgeD) 33 SMO]|e UOINHISUOD) Y}
‘Bunsaw 1auIge) dY) JO 33ep Y} Ag 19W 3 Jouued

/19nd

Jeuts

puodsai 03} aunpeap ayi a13YyAA 'y3notog sy} ysnoiog ay)
uodn 1oedwii 1M JeY} suonnyisul pue saipoq angnd|  uodn 1oedwi Aew
19410 10 /9 Sy} JUSLIUISAOL) LUOJS SUOIIE}NSUOD| 1By} SUOI}e}nsuod
an9nd snouen| areudoidde se odl Buidsswa Aue ainyded 03 wayl prepuels A3y oy asuodsay| |S
adueuld =04 uolessiuiwpy =gy 2a4ed |eld0g = DS SOIIAIBG SJUBPISAY = SY "muCOEtNQQD [1vuUno) yjuow yoea waj| piepuels = |S
suoseal uoIs1d3p 3y} uo uoneuwuojul|  3jqisuodsay dUno)|  (s)prem s|ie1ap Jayung suoispag
uols|d uoneynsuo 13yuny 1o s)Jaqud n
? Bm>_hn_n_ e uuﬂcou; hwu*_tm “ Hu:_nm_u Aq co_m__”“ww_ Buiwoadn

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Agenda ltem 11

WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
Contact Officer: Luke Taylor
Telephone: 01895 250 693
REASON FOR ITEM

This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This
is a standard item at the end of the agenda.

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE
1. To confirm dates for meetings;

2. To make suggestions for future working practices and/or reviews.

INFORMATION

All meetings to start at 7.30pm

Meetings Room
16 June 2016 CR3
19 July 2016 CR4
26 September 2016 CR3
11 October 2016 CR3
29 November 2016 CR4
5 January 2017 CR4
2 February 2017 CR4
9 March 2017 CR4
25 April 2017 CR4

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 53



Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee

2016/17 DRAFT Work Programme

Meeting Date Item

16 June 2016 Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee
Possible Review Topics 2016/17

Business Rates Review - Update

Work programme for 2016/17

Cabinet Forward Plan

19 July 2016 Budget Planning Report for Administration and Finance
Directorates
CANCELLED Update item

Work Programme

Cabinet Forward Plan

26 September 2016 Update Item - Town Centre Scheme

Scoping reports for Major Review

Cabinet Forward Plan

Work Programme

11 October 2016 Major Review - First Witness Session

Update ltem

CANCELLED
Cabinet Forward Plan

Work Programme

29 November 2016 Major Review - First Witness Session

Update Item - Town Centre Scheme

Update Item - Procurement & Contracts

Cabinet Forward Plan

Work Programme

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 54



5 January 2017

Major Review - Consideration of Recommendations

Draft Budget Proposals Report for Administration & Finance
2017/18

Cabinet Forward Plan

Work Programme

2 February 2017

Major Review - Final Report

Draft Budget Proposals 2017/18 - Comments from Policy
Overview Committees

Update Item - Use of Data

Update Item - Community Cohesion / Hate Crime

Cabinet Forward Plan

Work Programme

9 March 2017

Update Item - Heathrow Business Rates

Update Item - Equalities in the Council

Quarterly Report - Procurement Activity and the Forward Plan
on Contracts

Cabinet Forward Plan

Work Programme

25 April 2017

Consideration of future review topics

Update Item - Cross Rail Town Centre Development

Cabinet Forward Plan

Work Programme

PART | - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 2 February 2017

Page 55




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Draft Budget Proposals 2017/18 - Comments from Policy Overview Committees
	7 Use of Data within the Council
	Item 7 - Appendix A - Information Security Statement 2015
	Item 7 - Appendix B - JSNA
	Item 7 - Appendix C - School Place Planning POC
	Item 7 - Appendix D - Troubled Families POC

	8 Community Cohesion and Hate Crime
	9 Modern Slavery
	10 Forward Plan
	Item 10 - Forward Plan

	11 Work Programme 2016/2017

